Minutes of Meeting of Environment Committee of Mid Ulster District Council
held on Tuesday 10 June 2025 in Council Offices, Ballyronan Road,
Magherafelt and by virtual means

Members Present Councillor McFlynn, Chair

Councillors J Buchanan, J Burton, Cahoon, Kelly,
Groogan, Johnston, McAleer*, McElvogue*, McGuigan,
McNamee, Milne*, Mullin*, Robinson, Varsani

Officers in Mrs Campbell, Strategic Director of Environment (SD:
Attendance Env)
Mr Conlon, Head of Technical Services (HoTS)

Mr McAdoo, Assistant Director of Environmental Services
(AD: ES)

Mr Scullion, Assistant Director of Property Services (AD:
PS)

Miss Thompson, Committee and Member Services
Officer

Others in Councillor Quinn (7.39 pm)***
Attendance

* Denotes members and members of the public present in remote attendance
** Denotes Officers present by remote means
*** Denotes others present by remote means

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm

The Chair, Councillor McFlynn welcomed everyone to the meeting and those
watching the meeting through the Live Broadcast. Councillor McFlynn in introducing
the meeting detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the business of
the committee in the chamber and by virtual means, by referring to Annex A to this
minute.

E116/25 Notice of Recording

Members noted that the meeting would be webcast for live and subsequent
broadcast on the Council’s You Tube site.

E117/25 Apologies

None.

1 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



E118/25 Declarations of Interest

The Chair reminded Members of their responsibility with regard to declarations of
interest.

Councillor McAleer declared an interest in agenda item 22 — Energy Contract Award
Update.

E119/25 Chair’s Business

This being her first meeting as Chair of the Environment Committee Councillor
McFlynn thanked Members and Officers for the work done throughout the past year.
Councillor McFlynn asked Members if they have an item for Chair's Business that
the request is submitted two days before the meeting.

The Chair referred to letter received from St Macartan’s Primary School Clogher and
asked Councillor Robinson to present the issue.

Councillor Robinson stated that St Macartan’s Primary School have had an ongoing
issue with traffic accessing and egressing the school on to the busy A4 and have
sent a letter to Council asking if there is anything it can do in lobbying to make the
junction to the school safer. The Councillor highlighted that there are similar issues
in other areas and that he has been working in relation to traffic problems in
Fivemiletown.

The Strategic Director of Environment (SD: Env) stated that she had also got a copy
of the letter and although Council doesn’t necessarily have any responsibility in
relation to roads and access, officers can seek to facilitate a meeting with Dfl, the
Education Authority and Members.

The Chair, Councillor McFlynn suggested that the letter received be circulated to
Clogher Valley DEA Members and that a meeting be facilitated.

Proposed by Councillor Robinson
Seconded by Councillor Varsani and

Resolved That it be recommended to Council —
e To send letter received from St Macartan’s Primary School to
Clogher Valley DEA Members.
e To facilitate meeting to discuss traffic issues at St Macartan’s
Primary School.

Matters for Decision
E120/25 Bus Shelters Update

The Head of Technical Services (HoTS) presented previously circulated report which
provided update on current bus shelter status.

2 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



Councillor Johnston spoke in relation to proposed bus shelter at Hillhead Road and
expressed concern following the meeting with Dfl that they are more worried about
liability than finding a solution meanwhile children continue to be exposed at the side
of the road with no shelter. The Councillor stated that there is to be a further
meeting with Dfl.

Councillor Varsani referred to bus shelter at Cloneen in Dungannon and that it is
disappointing that this application is being rejected. The Councillor stated that she is
aware that both Roads Service and Council Officers did their best to find a suitable
location in relation to this application but that it cannot progress despite the need that
was identified. Councillor Varsani stated that the residents of Cloneen will be
disappointed but that she would explain to them that all options were explored.

Proposed by Councillor Robinson
Seconded by Councillor Johnston and

Resolved That it be recommended to Council that —
e Bus shelter applications listed as recommended to move from stage
5, under 3.4: 1Nr
e 2025-003 Rocktown Road, Castledawson
e Bus shelter applications listed under 3.8 is recommended for
rejection this month: 1Nr
e 2025-001 Cloneen Estate, Dungannon

Matters for Information
E121/25 Environment Committee minutes of meeting held on 13 May 2025
Members noted minutes of Environment Committee held on 13 May 2025.

E122/25 Building Control Workload

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the workload
analysis for Building Control.

E123/25 Entertainment Licensing Applications

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on Entertainment
Licensing Applications across the Mid Ulster District.

Councillor Mullin welcomed the application for Pomeroy Forest Park but that the type
of licence, days/hours proposed and number of patrons is to be confirmed. The
Councillor asked that this is looked at sooner than later and referred to previously
held Comhaltas event which was very successful but would have been better if there
had been an Entertainment Licence for inside the building.

3 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



E124/25 Dual Language Signage Requests

Members noted previously circulated report which advised of requests for Dual
Language Signage from residents on the streets/roads in question.

E125/25 Dual Language Signage Surveys

Members noted previously circulated report which advised of the result of surveys
undertaken on all applicable residents on the streets/roads in response to Dual
Language Signage Nameplate requests.

Councillor McNamee referred to survey of Killybearn Road, Cookstown and
highlighted report which stated that 12 survey letters were returned, 1 reply in favour
and 1 reply not in favour and that the percentage in favour is 92%. The Councillor
asked if there was a typographical error.

The Assistant Director of Property Services (AD: PS) advised that this was a
typographical error.

E126/25 Eco Speak Competition 2025

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the annual
Eco Speak Competition for Mid Ulster Primary Schools.

The Chair, Councillor McFlynn stated this is a valuable competition and
congratulated the winners and suggested inviting the top two schools to an
Environment Committee to discuss their projects.

Councillor Robinson congratulated officers on a great event and stated that he had
been impressed with the ideas and suggestions put forward by the young people
taking part. Councillor Robinson proposed inviting schools to the Environment
Committee.

Councillor J Burton felt that regardless of whether they won or not all participants of
the competition should be invited to a Committee.

The Chair, Councillor McFlynn stated that there were four finalists of the competition
and suggested that they be invited to a future meeting.

Members were in agreement.

Resolved That it be recommended to Council that the four finalists of the Eco
Speak Competition be invited to a future Environment Committee.

E127/25 Chewing Gum Task Force Grant Funding

Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the successful
application to the Chewing Gum Task Force Year 4 (2025) Grant Scheme.

The Chair, Councillor McFlynn stated that the funding is welcome.
4 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



Councillor Johnston proposed a marketing campaign similar to that for dog fouling be
undertaken to raise awareness of chewing gum and disposing of it properly.

Councillor J Burton seconded Councillor Johnston’s proposal.

Resolved That it be recommended to Council to undertake marketing campaign
in relation to disposal of chewing gum.

Councillor Varsani agreed that the grant money is welcome and highlights how costly
an issue this is to rectify. The Councillor agreed with the proposal for more
campaigning and that it is her understanding there is already some signage in
Cookstown. Councillor Varsani stated that it is very labour intensive and expensive
to remove chewing gum from pavements and that anything that can be done to
educate people should be done.

Councillor Robinson asked if it just the main towns that benefit from having the
steam cleaner.

The Assistant Director of Environmental Services (AD: ES) advised that the funding
and the steam cleaner is targeted primarily at public realm areas but if there is
capacity and resource then it can be rolled out to other areas. The AD: ES also
stated that one of the conditions of the funding is to run a communications campaign
so this will be undertaken.

Councillor J Burton stated that there has been a slight improvement in the
Dungannon area and encouraged as much use as possible of the steam cleaner.
The Councillor stated that although public realm areas are focussed on it would also
be appreciated if side streets could be cleaned.

Councillor McGuigan stated that the focus is normally on litter and whilst litter is easy
to lift chewing gum is much more difficult to clean up and highlighted that the report
outlines that 100k has been invested on this issue over the past four years. The
Councillor stated that there is a need to focus on the public realm areas as these are
the areas promoted and that there needs to be education in relation to the disposal
of chewing gum.

The Chair, Councillor McFlynn stated that litter is a disgusting habit and felt that
dropping chewing gum is as bad as dog fouling. Councillor McFlynn stated it is good

to hear there will be a marketing campaign as considerable money has been spent
on public realm schemes throughout the District.

Live broadcast ended at 7.23 pm.

Local Government (NI) Act 2014 - Confidential Business

Proposed by Councillor McNamee
Seconded by Councillor McGuigan and

5 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



Resolved

E141/25

In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to
withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items E128/25 to

E140/25.

Matters for Decision

E128/25
E129/25
E130/25
E131/25
E132/25

E133/25

Capital Projects - IST Award — Greenvale Leisure Centre
— Viewing Gallery and Front Entrance Works

Capital Projects - IST Award — Small Settlements-
Coalisland Canal

Application for installation of Memorial Bench (a)
Application for Installation of Memorial Bench (b)
Contract for the Collection, Processing and Recycling of
Plasterboard from Recycling Centres

Service for the haulage, treatment and disposal of
residual waste

Matters for Information

E134/25

E135/25
E136/25
E137/25
E138/25
E139/25
E140/25

Environment Committee Confidential Minutes of meeting
held on 13 May 2025

Maghera Regeneration Programme Update

Capital Programme 2023-2027: 2024/25 Update

Energy Contract Award Update

Off-Street Car Parking Update 2024-2025

Capital Framework — ICT Contracts Update

Capital Framework — IST Contracts Update

Duration of Meeting

The meeting was called for 7.00 pm and ended at 7.58 pm.

CHAIR

DATE

6 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



Annex A - Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson

Good evening and welcome to the Council’s [Policy & Resources/Environment/
Development] Committee in the Chamber, [Dungannon/Magherafelt] and virtually.

| specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast. The Live
Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we
move into Confidential Business. | let you know before this happens.

Just some housekeeping before we commence. Can | remind you:-

(@)

If you have joined the meeting remotely please keep your audio on mute unless
invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking

Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet
connection issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off

If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep
raised until observed by an Officer or myself

Should we need to take a vote this evening | will ask each member to confirm
whether they are for or against the proposal or abstaining

When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting

For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please
turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item

If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being
referred to

Lastly, | remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or
using any means to enable anyone not present to see or hear proceedings, or
making a simultaneous oral report of the proceedings are not permitted

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda.

7 — Environment Committee (10.06.25)



